
 City Council 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Vice Mayor 

Jeff Williams, Council Member 
Robert Griffith, Council Member 

Vacant, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Louis Osemwegie 

Willows City Council 
Regular Meeting 
November 8, 2022 
Willows City Hall  
6:00 PM – Regular Session 

201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041 Agenda

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

5. PROCLAMATION

a. Recognition of Veterans Day, November 11, 2022

b. Recognition of Pearl Harbor Day, December 7, 2022

6. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM
All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and are approved by one motion and vote, unless

Councilmembers or the City Manager first requests that a matter be removed for separate discussion and

action. Individuals wishing to address the City Council concerning Consent Calendar items or regarding matters

that are not already on the agenda are invited to make oral comments of up to three minutes at this time.

Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers, and not to staff and/or the audience. By

State law, the Council is not permitted to undertake any action or discussion on any item not appearing on the

posted agenda. If you have any documentation that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it

to the City Clerk at 201 North Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: losemwegie@cityofwillows.org.

a. Register Approval

Recommended Action: Approve general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.

Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org.

b. Minutes Approval

Recommended Action: Approve City Council minutes of the October 10, 11, 21 and 25, 2022,

City Council meetings.

Contact: Marti Brown, Acting City Clerk, mbrown@cityofwillows.org.

1

mailto:losemwegie@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org


WILLOWS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 2 

c. State Revolving Loan (SRL) Fund Grant – CCTV Inspection of Sewage Collection System

Recommended Action: Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to submit a grant

application to the State Revolving Loan Fund to fund CCTV Inspection of the City and Northeast

Willows Community Service District’s sewage collection system; and, if the grant is awarded,

authorize the City Manager to execute all associated and required documents.

Contact: John Wanger, Interim Community Development & Services Director,

jwanger@cityofwillows.org.

d. Willdan Contract Amendment and One-Year Extension (Planning Services)

Recommended Action: Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to execute a one-year

contract extension to the City’s contract with Willdan Engineering for planning services.

Contact: Marti Brown, City Manager, mbrown@cityofwillows.org.

7. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR
All matters in this section of the Agenda are discussed and will be acted on individually. Individuals wishing to

address the City Council concerning any of these items are invited to make oral comments of up to three

minutes at this time. Please address your comments to the Mayor and Councilmembers, and not to staff and/or

the audience. When the Mayor calls for public comment, please raise your hand to be acknowledged. While not

required, the City requests that you please state your name clearly for the audio recording. By State law, the

Council is not permitted to undertake any action or discussion on any item not appearing on the posted agenda.

If you have any documentation that you would like distributed to the City Council, please mail it to the City Clerk

at 201 North Lassen Street, Willows, CA 95988 or email it to: losemwegie@cityofwillows.org.

a. Second Reading by Title Only of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 15 of the Willows Municipal
Code (2022 Building Codes)
Recommended Action: Adopt by title only and waive reading of the text, an Ordinance
repealing and adopting portions of Municipal Code Chapter 15 (Buildings and Construction)
affecting sub sections; 15.10, 15.11, 15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 15.50, 15.55, 15.60, 15.70, 15.75,
15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 15.91 and 15.95.  This Ordinance is necessary to adopt the new 2022
Building Codes adopted by the State effective January 1, 2023.
Contact: John Wanger, Interim Community Development & Services Director,
jwanger@cityofwillows.org.

b. Second Reading by Title Only and Adoption of an Ordinance Updating the Willows Municipal
Code (Fire Code)
Recommended Action: Introduce second reading by title only and adoption of an ordinance to
update the Willows Municipal Code (Fire Code).
Contact: Nathaniel Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org

c. United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Grant Authorization (Fire)
Recommended Action: Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to submit a USDA grant
application to replace the existing front line 1996 Type 1 Fire Engine and, if awarded, execute
all required documents in order to receive the grant.
Contact: Nathan Monck, Fire Chief, nmonck@cityofwillows.org.

2

mailto:jwanger@cityofwillows.org
mailto:mbrown@cityofwillows.org
mailto:losemwegie@cityofwillows.org
mailto:jwanger@cityofwillows.org
mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org
mailto:nmonck@cityofwillows.org


3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
PROCLAMATIONS 

 
 

4



Mayor’s Proclamation 
Proclaiming November 11, 2022 

Veterans Day! 
 

WHEREAS, the 11th of November 1918, marked the end of the ‘war to end all wars’ and the cessation of the most 
destructive, sanguinary, and far reaching war in human annals and the resumption by the people of the United States of 

peaceful relations with other nations, which we hope may never again be severed; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is fitting that the recurring anniversary of this date should be commemorated with thanksgiving and prayer 
and exercises designed to perpetuate peace through good will and mutual understanding between nations; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 1, 1954 Congress declared that Armistice Day should be Veterans Day to honor all who had served in 

all wars to preserve world peace and on October 8, 1954 President Dwight D. Eisenhower issued the first Veterans Day 
Proclamation; and 

 
WHEREAS, to protect the Nation they love, our veterans stepped forward when America needed them most. In conflicts 

around the world, their sacrifice and resolve helped destroy the enemies of freedom and saved millions from oppression. In 
answering history's call with honor, decency, and resolve, our veterans have shown the power of liberty and earned the 

respect and admiration of a grateful Nation; and 
 

WHEREAS, all of America's veterans have placed our Nation's security before their own lives, creating a debt that we can 
never fully repay.  Our veterans represent the best of America, and they deserve the best America can give them; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Larry Domenighini, Mayor of the City of Willows and on behalf of the Willows City Council and 

the Citizens of Willows, do hereby proclaim November 11, 2022, as Veterans Day and urge all citizens of Willows to 
recognize the valor and sacrifice of our veterans through ceremonies and prayers. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and official seal this 8th day of November 2022. 

 
________________________________ 

Larry Domenighini, Mayor 

5



 
 

City of Willows 
Mayor’s Proclamation 

Proclaiming Tuesday 
December 7, 2022,  

“Pearl Harbor 
Remembrance Day” 

 
WHEREAS, on December 7, 1941, as dawn broke over the island of Oahu, hundreds of bombs 
broke through the sky as Imperial Japanese Navy Forces launched an unprovoked aerial attack 

on an American naval base at Pearl Harbor, launching America into a conflict that would 
forever change the course of human dignity, freedom and history.  While the bombardment lasted 
only two hours, it was devastating - destroying nearly 20 American naval vessels, including eight 

battleships, and more than 300 airplanes.  The surprise assault resulted in the deaths of 2403 
unsuspecting and innocent military personnel and civilians alike, and wounded an additional 

1178 others; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 8, 1941, while addressing the United States Congress concerning the 
surprise assault on Pearl Harbor, President Franklin D. Roosevelt requested that Congress 

declare war on Japan, stating, in part:  
 

“Yesterday the United States of America was suddenly and deliberately attacked......No matter 
how long it may take us to overcome this premeditated invasion, the American people in their 

righteous might will win through to absolute victory.  I believe I interpret the will of the 
Congress and of the people when I assert that we will not only defend ourselves to the 

uttermost but will make very certain that this form of treachery shall never endanger us 
again.”   

 
On that day, December 8, 1941, Congress approved President Roosevelt’s request for 

declaration of war, and the United States had officially joined World War II; and 
 

WHEREAS, although America may had been unprepared for war, in response to the declaration 
of war, the American people summoned a great national effort in military strength, and patriots 
from every corner of our Nation answered the call to serve and band together in common cause.  

Sixteen million Americans left behind everything they knew and loved in order to fight for 
freedom far from home and liberate a continent from the grip of tyranny.  Individuals from all 
backgrounds and walks of life courageously crossed oceans and stormed beaches, uplifting a 

generation and paving the way for our fiercest adversaries to become some of our closest allies; 
and 

6

http://mylittlepencilcase.blogspot.com/2011/09/usa-flag-and-states.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-sa/3.0/


 
WHEREAS, the sacrifices of our military personnel at Pearl Harbor became a prelude to those 
that America’s brave fighting forces were to endure around the world for the next three and one-
half years  - and in the example of those who came forth in those months and years following the 
attack on Pearl Harbor, we saw an enduring truth:  that no challenge is too great when we stand 
as one people, committed to the ideals which the stars and stripes symbolize, and we remember 

that strength, vigilance and devotion will forever keep America the land of the free and the home 
of the brave; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize and honor America’s Greatest Generation who, 

through sacrifice, valor, dedication and determination courageously defended our Nation and 
preserved our freedom; and also, to honor those American patriots who died as a result of their 
service.  We resolve that we will keep faith with those we have loved and lost and resolve that, 

always, we will remember Pearl Harbor and the Global conflict of World War II. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Larry Domenighini, Mayor of the City of Willows, and on behalf of the 
Willows City Council, do hereby proclaim December 7, 2022, “Pearl Harbor Remembrance 
Day” in the City of Willows, and I call upon the citizens of Willows to observe this solemn 

occasion with appropriate ceremonies and activities and to pledge eternal vigilance and strong 
resolve to defend our Nation and its allies from future aggression. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the seal of the City of 

Willows to be affixed hereto this 8th day of November 2022. 

 
_________________________ 

Larry Domenighini,  
Mayor 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT & 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

FORUM 
 

8



FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022        PERIOD 06/16/2022     TO   06/30/2022 

General Checking 052281      TO 052354 

FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023        PERIOD 08/09/2022     TO    10/31/2022 

Payroll Direct Deposit Z46082      TO Z46108 

General Checking 40455      TO 40467 

Check Register     052442      TO 052634 

APPROVAL DATE      11/08/2022 

APPROVED ___________________________ 

9

Agenda Item# 6a



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



City Council 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Vice Mayor 

Jeff Williams, Council Member 
Robert Griffith, Council Member 

Vacant, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Draft Action Special 
Meeting Minutes 
October 10, 2022 

201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER - 12:00 P.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Present: Councilmember Griffith, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Mayor Domenighini
Absent: Councilmember Williams

4. CLOSED SESSION
Public employee performance evaluation

Pursuant of Government Code §54957 
TITLE: CITY MANAGER 

Action: There was no report. Direction was given to staff. 

5. ADJOURNMENT – 12:53 PM

Dated: November 3, 2022 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

57

Agenda Item# 6b



 City Council 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Vice Mayor 

Jeff Williams, Council Member 
Robert Griffith, Council Member 

Vacant, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Draft Action  
Meeting Minutes  
October 11, 2022 201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 
(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present: Council Members Griffith and Williams, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and
Mayor Domenighini 

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Agenda Item #7a. was continued to the October 25, 2022, City Council meeting.

5. PROCLAMATION
a. Honoring Veterans of the Global War on Terrorism

6. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM

Public Comment:
Carol Lemenager
Announced December 10 Dinner to Recognize Veterans.
Announced “Wreaths Across America” event.

Roberta Asbury
Requested information about a five-year audit on financial records.

Consent Calendar:
Action: Removed Agenda Item #6c. from the Consent Calendar (Councilmember Williams) and passed a
motion to approve Consent Calendar Items #6a. and #6b.
Moved/Seconded: Councilmember Griffith, Vice-Mayor Hansen
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

a. Register Approval
Action: Approved general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.

58



b. Minutes Approval
Action: Approved minutes of the September 27, 2022, City Council meeting.

c. Updated Salary Schedule for All Authorized Full-Time Job Classifications
Action: Adopted the updated salary schedules for all authorized full-time job classifications
(Exhibits A, B and C).

Moved/Seconded: Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Griffith
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmember Griffith
No: Councilmember Williams.

7. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR

a. Solid Waste/Organics Recycling Compliance (SB 1383) – Delegation to Glenn County
Action: Continued to the October 25, 2022, City Council meeting.

b. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Coronavirus Response
Round 2 and 3 (CDBG-CV2 and CV3) - Amendment
Action: 1.) Reviewed and adopted a resolution approving an amendment to the standard
agreement for the 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Coronavirus
Response Round 2 and 3 (CDBG-CV2 and CV3) Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated
December 18, 2022.

Moved/Seconded: Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Williams
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

Action: 2.) Reviewed and approved the updated Memorandum of Understanding between the
County of Glenn and the City of Willows.

Moved/Seconded: Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Griffith
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

8. CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to Government Code Sections §54954.3, the public will have an opportunity to directly address the
legislative body on the item below prior to the Council convening into closed session. Public Comments are
generally restricted to three minutes.

a. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (§ 54956.9). (1 Case)
Name of Case:  City of Willows v. Lucky B. Wyatt, Superior Court of California, County of Glenn
Case No. 21CV02682

b. License/Permits (§ 54956.7)
Applicant(s): One (1)

59



Action: No report from Closed Session. Direction was given to staff. 

9. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. City Council Comments & Reports
b. City Manager’s Report

10. ADJOURNMENT – 7:18 PM

Dated: November 3, 2022 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

60



City Council 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Vice Mayor 

Jeff Williams, Council Member 
Robert Griffith, Council Member 

Vacant, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

 

Willows City Council 
Draft Action Special 
Meeting Minutes 
October 21, 2022 
 

201 North Lassen Street 

Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER - 9:00 AM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Present: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmembers Williams and Griffith

4. CLOSED SESSION
Councilmember Williams recused.

a) Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Pursuant of Government Code §54957
Title: City Manager

Action: There was no report. Direction was given to staff. 

5. ADJOURNMENT – 10:51 AM

61



 City Council 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor 
Gary Hansen, Vice Mayor 

Jeff Williams, Council Member 
Robert Griffith, Council Member 

Vacant, Council Member 

City Manager 
Marti Brown 

City Clerk 
Vacant 

Willows City Council 
Draft Action  
Meeting Minutes  
October 25, 2022 
 

201 North Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

(530) 934-7041

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL
Councilmembers Present: Council Members Griffith and Williams, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and
Mayor Domenighini 

4. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
None.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT & CONSENT CALENDAR FORUM

Public Comment:
Lavonne Hinton – Lion’s Club Gazebo

Consent Calendar:
Passed a motion to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion.
Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Griffith and Williams
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

a. Register Approval
Action: Approved general checking, payroll, and direct deposit check registers.

b. Award Bid – Firefighting Hoses and Nozzles
Action: Approved bid award and authorized the Fire Chief to purchase the equipment listed in
quote #QT1623412 from Municipal Emergency Services (MES), the lowest responsible bidder.

c. Award Bid – Structural Firefighting Ensembles
Action: Approved bid award and authorized the Fire Chief to purchase the equipment listed in
quote #QT1623862 from Municipal Emergency Services (MES), the lowest responsible bidder.

d. Solid Waste/Organics Recycling Compliance (SB 1383) – Delegation to Glenn County
Action: Approved the attached resolution delegating authority and responsibility for organics
recycling compliance to the County Joint Powers Authority (JPA) established for the purpose of

62



recycling compliance programs. 

6. DISCUSSION & ACTION CALENDAR

a. North Lassen Street Improvements
Action: Approved the attached resolution accepting the improvements associated with the
North Lassen Street Rehabilitation Project, authorized the filing of the Notice of Completion
and release of surety, and approved a budget increase of $15,098.44 for the overall project.

Moved/Seconded: Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Griffith
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

7. PUBLIC HEARING

a. 2022 California Building Standards Code Adoption and Update Willows Municipal Code
Action: 1.) Introduce by title only and waive reading of the text an Ordinance repealing and
adopting portions of the Willows Municipal Code, Chapter 15 (Buildings and Construction)
affecting the following sub sections: 15.10, 15.11, 15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 15.50, 15.55, 15.60,
15.70, 15.75, 15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 15.91 and 15.95.

Action: Moved/Seconded: Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Griffith
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

2.) By motion, schedule a public hearing for the second reading and adoption of the Ordinance
for the November 8, 2022 City Council meeting.

Moved/Seconded: Councilmembers Griffith and Williams
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

b. 2022 California Fire Code Adoption and Update Willows Municipal Code
Recommended Action: 1.) Introduce by title only and waive reading of the text of an Ordinance
repealing, replacing and/or amending certain sections of the Willows Municipal Code, Chapter
15.15 (Fire Code) and to adopt by reference and amend certain portions of the 2022 California
Fire Codes.

Moved/Seconded (by Title Only): Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Williams
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

2.) by motion, schedule the second reading and adoption of the Ordinance for the November 8,
2022, City Council meeting.

Moved/Seconded (by Reference): Vice-Mayor Hansen, Councilmember Griffith
Yes: Mayor Domenighini, Vice-Mayor Hansen, and Councilmembers Griffith and Williams

8. COMMENTS & REPORTS
a. City Council Comments & Reports
b. City Manager’s Report

63



9. CLOSED SESSION
Councilmember Williams recused.

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (§ 54957)
Title: City Manager

10. OPEN SESSION REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION
No report.

11. ADJOURNMENT – 9:00 PM

Dated: November 3, 2022 

______________________________ 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

64



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: November 8, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: John Wanger, City Engineer 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: State Revolving Loan Fund Grant – CCTV Inspection of Sewage Collection System 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to submit a grant application to the State 
Revolving Loan Fund to fund CCTV Inspection of the City and Northeast Willows Community 
Service District’s sewage collection system; and, if the grant is awarded, authorize the City 
Manager to execute all associated and required documents.  

Background: 

The sewer system requires an evaluation of its existing sewer pipe system conditions, including 
the location of necessary repairs and priority ranking of those repairs (e.g., timing). This type of 
evaluation is typically accomplished through CCTV inspection of the collection system.   

The last inspection was completed 15 years ago. As a result, another CCTV evaluation is needed 
in order to accurately identify and prioritize problem areas within the collection system, as well 
as ensure that repairs are completed in a timely manner in the priority areas. The City 
maintains approximately 30 miles of sewer lines. As a result, the estimated cost to CCTV the 
entire collection system is approximately $400,000.  To help fund these efforts, staff has 
pursued this planning grant through the State’s Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) 
Program. 

Discussion & Analysis: 

At the April 12, 2022, City Council meeting, the Council approved a contract with Bennett 
Engineering to assist the City with completing the grant application.  As part of those 
requirements, the City must specify who is authorized to sign the application and authorization 
must be in the form of a resolution. The State also provides recommended wording in the 
resolution for the appointment. Staff recommends that the City Manager, or her designee, 
execute the grant application and, if the grant is awarded, all associated documents.  

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact. 
65

Agenda Item# 6c



Attachments: 

 Attachment 1-Resoluiton

66



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-__ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE CITY ENGINEER TO REPRESENT 
THE CITY FOR THE APPLICATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE WILLOWS 

SEWER I&I STUDY 

WHEREAS, the City of Willows (the “City”) desires to authorize the City Engineer (the “Authorized 
Representative”) to sign and file, for and on behalf of the City, a Financial Assistance Application for a 
financing agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board for the planning of the Willows Sewer 
I&I Study (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires that the Authorized Representative is designated to provide the 
assurances, certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, including 
executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board and any 
amendments or changes thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires that the Authorized Representative is designated to represent the 
City in carrying out the City’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including certifying 
disbursement requests on behalf of the City and compliance with applicable state and federal laws. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council has made the following findings 
with respect to the project: 

1. That the City Council hereby authorizes the City Engineer to be the Authorized Representative to
represent the City for the Willows Sewer I&I Study.

2. The Authorized Representative or designee is hereby authorized and directed to sign and file, for
and on behalf of the City, a Financial Assistance Application for a financing agreement from the
State Water Resources Control Board for the planning, design, and construction of the Project.

3. The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide the assurances,
certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, including
executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board and
any amendments or changes thereto.

4. The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent the City in
carrying out the City’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including certifying
disbursement requests on behalf of the City and compliance with applicable state and federal
laws.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows, State of California this 8th day of 
November 2022, by the following vote:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

___________________________ _________________________ 

67

Attachment 1



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: November 8, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From: Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: Willdan Contract Amendment and One-Year Extension (Planning Services) 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to execute a one-year contract extension to the 
City’s contract with Willdan Engineering for contract planning services.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 

For more than a decade, the City has contracted with Willdan Engineering for contract planning 
services. Willdan has extensive knowledge of the City’s Municipal Code, as well as institutional 
history regarding the City’s current and past planning practices. As the City continues to need 
contract planning services, staff recommends amending the Willdan contract with a one-year 
extension.  

Background: 

While Willdan has provided the City with part-time contract planning services for 13 years, in 
the Fall of 2019, the City circulated a new Request for Proposals for contract planning services. 
Two proposals were received – one from Willdan Engineering and one from Four Leaf, Inc. The 
proposals were subjected to a panel review and rigorous scoring process. Willdan received a 
substantially higher score than Four Leaf. The scores were presented to the City Council in 
December 2019 and the Council elected to renew Willdan’s contract for three years. The 
current contract expires December 31, 2022.  

Discussion & Analysis: 

The City continues to need contract planning services as there is not sufficient city planning 
work and permitting to warrant a full-time permanent Planner. In addition, there is insufficient 
time to circulate a Request for Proposal for planning services before December 31, 2022, should 
the Council wish to consider rebidding for planning services.   

68

Agenda Item# 6d



Fiscal Impact: 

Other than any Consumer Price Index (CPI) increases (from April to April), there will be no fiscal 
impact as contract planning services have already been budgeted for this fiscal year.  

Attachment: 

 Attachment 1: Letter from Willdan Engineering – Contract Planning Services

69



November 2, 2022 

Ms. Marti Brown 
City Manager 
City of Willows 
201 N. Lassen Street 
Willows, CA 95988 

Subject: Contract Planning Services 

Dear Ms. Brown: 

Willdan is pleased to submit this proposal to the City of Willows to provide continued professional 
contract planning services.  It has been our privilege to serve as the City of Willows' contract 
planning staff for the past 13 years. It will be our pleasure to continue our services in the same 
capacity in the coming fiscal years.  Ms. Karen Mantele will continue to serve as the City's contract 
Planning Director, with additional Willdan technical support staff available for her to call upon on 
an as-needed basis. 

Willdan proposes a one-year extension, subject to the CPI – West Urban B/C from April to April. 
All work associated with the processing of development applications will continue to be tracked 
separately and the City will be fully reimbursed for these costs from developer deposits. In this 
manner, the City will continue to realize full cost recovery for these planning services.   

As you know, Willdan Engineering (Willdan) has a long history of successfully providing contract 
planning assistance to California communities.  We have provided interim or long-term planning 
assistance to over 100 California cities.  We appreciate the high value you and the city place on 
Karen's work and appreciate the opportunity to offer our continued assistance for your current 
and advanced planning needs.  If you have any questions, please contact me at (562) 364-7600 
or via e-mail at slopez@willdan.com.    

Sincerely, 

Willdan Engineering 

Salvador Lopez Jr. 
Director of Planning 

ATTACHMENT 1

70

mailto:slopez@willdan.com


DISCUSSION & ACTION 
CALENDAR 

71



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: November 8, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: John Wanger, Interim Community Development Services Director 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: Second Reading by Title Only of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 15 of the 
Willows Municipal Code (2022 Building Codes)  

Recommendation: 

Adopt by title only and waive reading of the text, an Ordinance repealing and adopting portions 
of Municipal Code Chapter 15 (Buildings and Construction) affecting sub sections; 15.10, 15.11, 
15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 15.50, 15.55, 15.60, 15.70, 15.75, 15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 15.91 and 15.95.  
This Ordinance is necessary to adopt the new 2022 Building Codes adopted by the State 
effective January 1, 2023.  

Rationale for Recommendation: 

This Ordinance and the associated building code amendments are necessary in order to adopt 
the State’s new 2022 Building Codes that will go into effect on January 1, 2023. 

Background: 

At the October 25, 2022 Council meeting, this item was introduced to the Council and a public 
hearing was held.  As this is an ordinance and as required by State law, this item is being 
represented to the Council for the second reading and adoption of the proposed Ordinance. 

On July 1, 2022, the State of California adopted new building codes based on the latest 
international and national model building codes that will go into effect on January 1, 2023.  The 
2022 codes replace the 2019 codes currently in use. The new Building Standards Code (BSC) is 
mandatory for local government agencies and becomes effective January 1, 2023.  Agencies 
must enforce the new codes by this date and all building permits submitted on or after this 
date must meet the new code requirements.   

Discussion & Action: 

While adoption of the BSC is mandatory, the State allows local agencies to further amend the 
building standards provided the adopted language is more restrictive than the State standards 
and are based on findings and justification based on local climatic, geological or topographic 
conditions. The adoption Ordinance and findings of fact must be filed with the State. 

72

Agenda Item# 7a



The attached Ordinances amend the City’s Municipal Code, Chapter 15 (“Buildings and 
Construction”) affecting the following sub sections: 15.10, 15.11, 15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 15.70, 
15.75, 15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 15.91, and 15.95 to adopt and amend the 2022 California 
Administrative Code, the 2022 California Building Code, the 2022 California Residential Code, 
the 2022 California Electrical Code, the 2022 California Mechanical Code, the 2022 California 
Plumbing Code, the 2022 California Administrative Code, the 2022 California Energy Code, the 
2022 California Elevator Safety Code,  the 2022 California Historical Building Code,  the 2019 
California Existing Building Code, the 2022 California Referenced Standards Code, The 2022 
California Green Building Standards Code and the Penalties.  In general, previous City 
amendments from earlier code versions have been carried forward in the attached ordinance.  

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachments 

 Attachment 1: Ordinance – California Building Standards Code

73



CITY OF WILLOWS 
ORDINANCE NO. xxx-2022 

“An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Willows, Repealing, Amending, and/or 
Creating specific Sections of Chapter 15; sub sections; 15.10, 15.11, 15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 

15.50, 15.55, 15.60, 15.70, 15.75, 15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 15.91 and 15.95 of the City of Willows 
Municipal Code, and to Adopt by Reference and Amend Certain Portions of the 2022 

California Building Standards Codes” 

Whereas, the California Building Standards Codes are published every three years by the 
California Building Standards Commission; 

Whereas, the California Building Standards Commission has published the 2022 California 
Building Standards Codes by amending Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, effective 
January 1, 2023; 

Whereas, the 2022 California Building Standards Codes are based in part on the 2021 
International Building Code, published by the International Code Council; 

Whereas, the California Building Standards Codes may be adopted by cities by incorporation by 
reference; 

Whereas, this ordinance is adopted pursuant to California Constitution, article 11, section 7, 
Government Code section 50022.1 et seq., Health and Safety Code sections 17958 and 18941.5, 
and other applicable laws.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 17958 et seq. and 
18941.5 cities may establish more restrictive building standards than those set forth in the 
California Building Standards Codes, when reasonably necessary due to local climatic, geological 
or topographical conditions; and 

Whereas, the 2022 California Building Standards Codes will automatically become effective 
without amendment in the City of Willows on January 1, 2023, unless the City affirmatively 
amends the Codes otherwise. 

The City Council of the City of Willows does ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1:  

Chapter 15: subsection (s) 15.10, 15.11, 15.20, 15.30, 15.35, 15.70, 15.75, 15.80, 15.85, 15.90, 
15.91, 15.95 of the City of Willows Municipal Code are hereby amended, reenacted and created 
to read as follows: 

Chapter Fifteen (15) Adoption of California Building Standards Commission Codes 

The following publications are hereby adopted by reference and incorporated, as if fully set forth 
in this Code; except as expressly amended or superseded by the provisions of this Chapter: 

15.10 The 2022 California Building Code, Title 24, Part 2 of the California 
Code of Regulations, including the following Appendices only: Chapter 1 
(Administrative), as further amended herein, Chapter I (Patio Covers) and 
Chapter J (Grading). 

ATTACHMENT 1

74



15.11 The 2022 California Residential Code, Title 24, Part 2.5 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

15.20 The 2022 California Electrical Code, Title 24, Part 3 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

15.30 The 2022 California Mechanical Code, Title 24, Part 4 of the 
California Code of Regulations.  

15.35 The 2022 California Plumbing Code, Title 24, Part 5 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

15.70 The 2022 California Administrative Code, Title 24, Part 1, Chapters 
4, 5 and 8 only 

15.75 The 2022 California Energy Code, Title 24, Part 6 of the California 
Code of Regulations. 

15.80 The 2022 California Elevator Safety Construction Code, Title 24, 
Part 7 of the California Code of Regulations. 

15.85 The 2022 California Historical Building Code, Title 24, Part 8 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

15.90 The 2022 California Referenced Standards Code, Title 24, Part 12 
of the California Code of Regulations. 

15.91 The 2022 California Green Building Standards Code, Title 24, Part 
11 of the California Code of Regulations. 

15.95 Penalties 

SECTION 2: The amendments to the codes described above are necessary to preserve the 
health, welfare and safety of residents, businesses and property within the City. 

SECTION 3: All former ordinances or parts conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this 
Ordinance and any other ordinance in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

SECTION 4: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any 
reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would 
have passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that anyone or more sections, subsections, 
sentences, clauses and phrases be declared unconstitutional.  

SECTION 5: The City Manager shall file with the California Building Standards Commission a 
copy of this ordinance, which includes the City's findings of fact supporting any 
City amendments to the uniform codes specified in section 1, above. 

SECTION 6: The City Council finds that the changes made to the 2022 Title 24 Codes are 
enacted to mitigate threats to public peace, health and safety from earthquakes, 
high winds and fire. Therefore, it can be seen with certainty that the adoption of 

75



this ordinance will not have a significant effect on the environment and is therefore 
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 
15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines.  

SECTION 7:  This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following adoption. 

INTRODUCED and passed first reading on the 25th day of October 2022. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows on the __th day of _______ 
2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 

_______________________   _______________________ 
Marti Brown, Interim City Clerk    Larry Domenighini, Mayor 

76



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: November 8, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From: Nathan Monck, Fire Chief 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: Second Reading by title only and adoption of an ordinance updating the Willows 
Municipal Code (Fire Code) 

Recommendation: 

Introduce second reading by title only and adoption of an ordinance to update the Willows 
Municipal Code (Fire Code).  

Rationale for Recommendation: 

This Ordinance and the associated fire code amendments are necessary in order to adopt the 
State’s new 2022 Fire Codes that will go into effect on January 1, 2023; and to relax previously 
stricter fire code standards in an effort to promote private investment and reduce the need for 
costly fire protection upgrades. 

Background: 

As part of the periodic review of the Fire Code, the California Building Standards Commission 
published the 2022 California Fire Code that will become effective January 1, 2023. Local 
jurisdictions may amend the California Fire Code to make the requirements more restrictive but 
not less restrictive. 

Discussion & Analysis: 

There have been no changes to the Staff Report and ordinance presented to the Council on 
October 25, 2022, and there was no public comment during the Public Hearing.  

Fiscal Impact:  

There is no fiscal impact. 

Attachment: 

Attachment 1: Ordinance – Amended Fire Code 

77

Agenda Item# 7b



CITY OF WILLOWS 
ORDINANCE NO XX-2022 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS, REPEALING, REPLACING, 
AND/OR AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 15.15 OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS 

MUNICIPAL CODE, TO ADOPT BY REFERENCE AND AMEND CERTAIN PORTIONS OF THE 2022 
CALIFORNIA FIRE CODES AND APPROVE THE LOCAL FINDINGS AS SET FORTH IN THE CODES 

WITH THE REMAINING SECTIONS CURRENTLY IN PLACE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED 

Whereas, the California Fire Codes are published every three years by the California 
Building Standards Commission; 

Whereas, the California Building Standards Commission has published the 2022 
California Fire Codes by amending Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, effective 
January 1, 2023; 

Whereas, the 2022 California Fire Codes are based in part on the 2021 International Fire 
Code, published by the International Code Council; 

Whereas, the California Fire Codes may be adopted by cities by incorporation by 
reference; 

Whereas, this ordinance is adopted pursuant to California Constitution, article 11, 
section 7, Government Code section 50022.1 et seq., Health and Safety Code sections 17958 
and 18941.5, and other applicable laws.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code sections 17958 et 
seq. and 18941.5, cities may establish more restrictive Fire standards than those set forth in the 
California Fire Codes, when reasonably necessary due to local climatic, geological or 
topographical conditions; and 

Whereas, the 2022 California Fire Codes will automatically become effective without 
amendment in the City of Willows 180 days after January 1, 2023, unless the City affirmatively 
amends the Codes otherwise. 

The City Council of the City of Willows does ordain as follows: 

SECTION 1:  
Chapter 15: subsubsection 15.15.010 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is hereby amended, 
reenacted and created to read as follows: 

15.15.010 Adoption of California Fire Codes 

The following publications are hereby adopted as the California Fire Code of the City of Willows 
and included in and made a part of this code as though set forth at length herein;  for the 

78

Attachment 1



purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and property from 
fire, hazardous materials or explosion, except as expressly amended or superseded by the 
provisions of this Chapter: 

The 2022 California Fire Code, Title 24, Part 9 of the California Code of Regulations, 
including Appendices and Amendments; the 2022 California Building Code Standards 
with Amendments; and the current International Fire Code and Standards.  .  
Additionally, National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standards 10, 13, 13R, 13D, 25 
with California Amendments, and NFPA 72 with the most recent editions are adopted.   

SECTION 2:  
Chapter 15: subsubsection 15.15.110 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is hereby amended, 
reenacted and created to read as follows: 

15.15.110 Sprinkler Systems 

The California Fire Code is amended in the following respects. There is added to the 
requirements of Section 903.2 the following: 

All Commercial and Industrial occupancies required by the 2022 California Fire Code 
to have an automatic sprinkler system shall have a Fire Department Connection 
(FDC) identified, accessible, and placed within 50' of a City standard hydrant. 

SECTION 3:  
Chapter 15: subsubsection 15.15.140 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is hereby amended, 
reenacted and created to read as follows: 

15.15.140 Problematic and Unreliable Fire Alarms 

The California Fire Code is amended in the following respects. There is added to Section 
901.6.1.1: 

The Fire chief or designee may determine a fire alarm to be unreliable upon receipt 
of more than four false alarms within a twelve month period. Upon making such 
finding, the chief may order the following: 

(A) Upon the fourth (4th) false alarm from the system within a twelve (12) month
period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the fire department of
$150.00 plus the costs of the response for each false alarm.

(B) Upon the sixth (6th) false alarm from the system within a twelve (12) month
period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the fire department of
$300.00 plus the costs of the response for each false alarm.

79



(C) Upon the eight (8th) and each subsequent false alarm, from the system within a
twelve (12) month period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the fire
department of $500.00 plus the cost of the response, as specified in the fire
department’s approved fee schedule for each occurrence. In addition, the chief may
require the system owner to provide standby personnel or take such measures as
he/she deems appropriate. Persons or activities required by the chief shall remain in
place until a fire department approved fire alarm maintenance firm certifies in
writing to the chief that the alarm system has been restored in a reliable condition.
The chief may require such tests as he deems necessary to demonstrate the
adequacy of the system.

SECTION 4:  
Chapter 15: subsubsection 15.15.200 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is hereby amended, 
reenacted and created to read as follows: 

15.15.200 - Establishment of Limits - Class 1 and 2 flammable liquids 

The limits referred to in Section 5704.2.9.6.1 of the California Fire Code in which storage of 
flammable liquids in outside above ground tanks is prohibited in R zones means Zones R-1, R-2, 
R-3 and R-P as defined in WMC 18.30-18.45 that are located within the incorporated limits of
the City of Willows, CA.

SECTION 5:   
Chapter 15: subsubsection 15.15.220 of the City of Willows Municipal Code is hereby amended, 
reenacted and created to read as follows: 

15.15.220 Establishment of Limits – Bulk Storage of Liquefied Petroleum Gas. 

The California Fire Code is amended in the following respects. There is added to Section 6104.2 
the following: 

(A) In the residential incorporated limits of the City of Willows, up to five hundred
gallons of combustible liquid meaning LPG may be stored in an above ground or
inground tank meeting requirements of sections 6104 of the California Fire Code.
Minimum distance must be maintained per table 6104.3 of the California Fire Code.
Tank base must be secured per NFIP (1993) Technical bulletin 7-93. Written notice
of having an above ground or inground tank will be placed in the main electrical
panel for notification to emergency personnel.

SECTION 6:  
The amendments to the codes described above are necessary to preserve the health, welfare 
and safety of residents, businesses and property within the City. All other subsections of 
Chapter 15 Section 15, not referenced in Sections 1-5, above shall remain, unchanged, in full 
force and effect. 

80



SECTION 7:  
All former ordinances or parts conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance 
and any other ordinance in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  

SECTION 8:  
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason, held 
to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and 
each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that 
anyone or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and phrases be declared 
unconstitutional.  

SECTION 9: 
The City Manager shall file with the California Building Standards Commission a copy of this 
ordinance, which includes the City's findings of fact supporting any City amendments to the 
uniform codes specified in Sections 1 through 5, above. 

SECTION 10:  
The City Council finds that the changes made to the 2022 Title 24 Codes are enacted to mitigate 
threats to public peace, health and safety from earthquakes, high winds and fire. Therefore, it 
can be seen with certainty that the adoption of this ordinance will not have a significant effect 
on the environment and is therefore exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines.  

SECTION 11:   
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following adoption. 

INTRODUCED and passed first reading on the 25th day of October. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows on the ___th day of ______ 
2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor   Marti Brown, City Manager  

81



_____________________________________________________________________ 

Date: November 8, 2022 

To: Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers 

From: Nate Monck, Fire Chief 
Marti Brown, City Manager 

Subject: United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Grant Authorization (Fire) 

Recommendation: 

Authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to submit a USDA grant application to replace the 
existing front line 1996 Type 1 Fire Engine and, if awarded, execute all required documents in 
order to receive the grant.  

Rationale for Recommendation:  

The City’s 26-year-old outdated, and unreliable Type 1 Fire Engine requires replacement. 

Background:  

The City of Willows needs to replace its outdated and unreliable Type 1 Fire Engine. Current 
lead times for a custom build to order a Type 1 Fire Engine is 32 months.  As a result of these 
delays from order date to delivery, future planning is paramount in order to provide effective 
and consistent fire protection and life safety services.  

It is staffs desire to present alternative funding solutions to upgrade and maintain its fleet of 
emergency vehicles. This grant opportunity offers a potential 55 percent decrease in cost for 
the purchase of its next Type 1 Fire Engine. Regardless of grant, the City’s current Type 1 Engine 
should be replaced as soon as possible.  

The City’s Type 1 Engine is the oldest fire engine in the City of Willows Fleet. It started service in 
1996. The City’s Type 1 Engine has had significant mechanical issues in the last year including, 
failure to pass pump testing, failure to engage fire pump, catastrophic failure of air brakes, fire 
pump pressure relief valve failure and failure of pump safety devices allowing the engine to roll 
away while the pump was engaged. Fortunately, these deficiencies were discovered during 
routine maintenance or training and resulted in no injuries, death, and/or did not negatively 
impact an emergency response. That said, all of these issues could have ended in tragedy.  

82

Agenda Item# 7c



The City’s current Type 1 Engine is extremely limited in its ability to respond to and mitigate a 
wide variety of incidents. For example, it has no auxiliary fire pump or ability to pump and roll 
for mobile fire attack. This severely limits firefighters’ ability to employ appropriate fire 
suppression tactics while operating at wildland fires. As a small fire department with a diverse 
range of emergency calls, each apparatus must be capable of responding to, and mitigating 
effectively, multiple types of emergencies. 

The City’s Type 1 Engine also lacks several modern-day safety devices and firefighter tools such 
as seatbelt notification center, integrated Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) seating, 
electric total pressure governors, National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) compliant 
apparatus reflective markings, and foam system to name a few. 

Discussion & Analysis: 

The proposed USDA Grant application requires a 45% local match. The total anticipated cost of 
the new Type 1 Fire Engine is $950,070.20 with an estimated general fund local match 
requirement of $427,531.59. Under the USDA Grant program a total of $522,538.61 would be 
eligible for grant funding. USDA may award the full 55% of eligible funds or may fund a lesser 
portion depending on available funding. Should this occur, Council would be notified, and 
additional direction would be requested.  

As in so many industries, fire apparatus manufacturers have also experienced rising production 
costs. Pierce Manufacturing, the largest and most reputable fire apparatus manufacturing 
company in the world, was forced to implement multiple prices increases due to inflation in 
2020, 2021, 2022 and they anticipate an additional price increase in February of 2023.  

The proposed cost estimate is based on an exact replica of the fire engine purchased by the City 
of Orland in June of 2021. Assuming only 10% price increase per year, if ordered in 2026, the 
total cost to the City of Willows for the same engine as Orland would be approximately $1.26 
million.  

As a result of these rapid increases, many agencies are purchasing now with the hopes of 
avoiding rising costs of materials and labor while recognizing extended production timelines. 

If the grant is awarded, the remaining balance due can be applied to a municipal lease. Several 
leasing companies were explored. Community Leasing Partners turned out to have the most 
flexible terms, including 1-15 year lease terms with no payments required for up to 20 months 
before signing the lease agreement. For example, a fire engine ordered prior to February 1, 
2022, would not require a payment (or price increase) until July 2024. A 10-year lease for the 
local match requirement would encumber approximately $60,000 per year of City funds. This is 
only one financing possibility, if grant funds are secured, a more detailed analysis will be 
completed with several options presented to City Council for consideration at a later date.  
The exact fiscal impact will not be known and quantified until the final Fire Engine is designed 
to City of Willows specifications 

83



Fiscal Impact: 

The exact impact to City Funds will not be known until the final Fire Engine is designed to City of 
Willows specifications. 

Attachments: 

 Attachment 1 - Type 1 Fire Engine Quote
 Attachment 2 - Community Leasing Partners Quote
 Attachment 3- Resolution

84



www.goldenstatefire.com 

7400 Reese Road 

Sacramento, CA 95828 

Office 916.330.1638 

Fax 916.330.1649 

Page 1 of 1 

WILLOWS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

Golden State Fire Apparatus/ Pierce Manufacturing Quote Information 

 October 17, 2022 

The following quote is for: 

o One (1) Pierce Enforcer PUC Type 1 Engine

▪ Duplicate to Orland FD job 36812

The following quote includes the following: 

▪ Third party surety performance bond.

▪ One factory pre-construction conference for three (3) customer representatives.

▪ One factory final inspection trip for three (3) customer representatives.

▪ Delivery of vehicle from the factory to dealership. Pre-delivery inspection at the dealership.

▪ Final delivery to customer location.

▪ DMV registration.

▪ State sales tax.

▪ California tire fee.

▪ Current day, vehicle completion is approximately 960 to 990 days from time of order.

100% PRE-PAYMENT OPTION  

NOTE: Quote is valid for 15 days from date of issuance and is subject to change based on final 
specification option content 

# Description Unit Price 

A Enforcer PUC Type 1 Engine $939,022.89 

B Discount For Sourcewell Consortium Purchase (City of Willows member ID# 119373) ($14,198.13) 

C Discount For 100% Pre-Payment ($38,988.21) 

7.25% State Sales Tax $64,223.15 

California Tire Fee   $10.50 

GRAND TOTAL $950,070.20 

ATTACHMENT 1

85

http://www.goldenstatefire.com/


Phone: 888.777.7850
Fax: 888.777.7875
Cell: 785.313.3154

www.clpusa.net

Customer Name:

Sales Representative:

•

•

•

•

Blake J. Kaus
Vice President & Director of Leasing
blakekaus@clpusa.net

Interest rates are fixed for terms up to 10 years.  For terms greater than 10 years, upon receipt of the 7th 
payment, at sole discretion of the Lessor, the remaining payments can be adjusted based on an index 
determined at contract issuance and then will remain fixed for the remaining term.

The quoted interest rate is valid for 10-days from the date of the proposal. To lock in the interest rate, a
credit submission would be required, and a credit approval attained within the same 10-day period. This
financing is to be executed and funded within 30 days of the date of the proposal, or Lessor reserves the
right to adjust the interest rate. The proposal is subject to credit review and approval of mutually acceptable
documentation. 
This proposal has been prepared assuming the lessee is bank qualified and that the proposed lease qualifies
for Federal Income Tax Exempt Status for the Lessor under Section 103 of the IRS Code.

Thank you for allowing Community Leasing Partners the opportunity to provide this proposal. If you
have any questions regarding the options presented, need additional options, or would like to proceed
with a financing, please contact me at 1-888-777-7850.

Respectively,

Jon Bauer @ Golden State Fire Apparatus

215 S. Seth Child Road
Manhattan, KS 66502

A Division of Community First National Bank - Member FDIC

July 15, 2024
Annual

9
$65,153.57

Term in Years:
Payment:

10

Total Cost:
Down Payment:

Trade In:

THERE ARE NO DOCUMENTATION OR CLOSING FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS PROPOSAL.

0.1346990.1447860.159145
5.09% 5.12%

Equipment:

Delivery:

One Pierce PUC Type I Engine

Estimated 960-990 days

First Payment:

$52,946.39

Payment Frequency:

Amount Financed:

500,070.20$        
-$  

450,000.00$       

October 24, 2022

Interest Rate:

Option 1

Willows, CA

0.117659
4.87% 4.89%

$60,614.36

950,070.20$        

Community Leasing Partners, a Division of Community First National Bank , is pleased to present the
following financing options for your review and consideration.

8
$71,615.24

Factor:

12

ATTACHMENT 2

86

http://www.clpusa.net/
mailto:blakekaus@clpusa.net
mailto:blakekaus@clpusa.net
mailto:blakekaus@clpusa.net


City of Willows  

Resolution xx-2022 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLOWS AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER, OR HER DESIGNEE, TO SIGN AND EXECUTE ALL AGREEMENTS WITH USDA FOR 

THE PURPOSE OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES GRANT ACTIVITIES FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
TYPE 1 FIRE ENGINE 

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that there is a need and desire to replace old, unsafe, and antiquated 
fire apparatus; and  

WHEREAS, the safety of the public and Willows Firefighters is a paramount duty of the City of Willows 
and the Willows Fire Department; and  

WHEREAS, the Willows Fire Department as part of its desire to promote public safety within the city 
wishes to apply for grant funding from USDA; and 

WHEREAS, match funds in the amount of $427,531.59, are available in the general fund, or can be 
obtained through a municipal lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Willows does hereby 
authorize the City Manager, or her designee, to enter into and execute all agreements between the City 
and USDA for the purpose of accepting USDA Grant Funding. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willows this 8th day of November 2022, by 
the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

APPROVED: ATTESTED: 

___________________________ _____________________________ 
Larry Domenighini, Mayor Louis Osemwegie, City Clerk 

87

Attachment 3


	Willows, CA 102422 - Pierce.pdf
	Arrears Proposal Template

	Willows, CA 102422 - Pierce.pdf
	Arrears Proposal Template




